
Board of Adjustment
October 20, 2020

7:00 P.M.  
WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 

I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. WELCOME.

III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (AUGUST).

V. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS.

1. MEMBER RESIGNATION.

VI. NEW BUSINESS.

1. 403 CASTLEFORD DRIVE - VARIANCE APPLICATION 
(SIDE YARD SETBACKS).

VII. REPORTS FROM STAFF - INFORMATIONAL ITEMS.

1. CHAPTER 160D - ZONING ORDINANCE UPDATES

VIII. ADJOURN. 

SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in the 
meeting should notify the Town Clerk, Don Harvey at 215-2344 at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the 
meeting.  (Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 



PLANNING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 18, 2020 - 7:00 PM 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MEETING MINUTES 
ELECTRONIC VIA ZOOM 

The Planning Board of Adjustment met on the above date at 7:00 PM electronically via ZOOM and in the 
Town Hall Assembly Room, with Chairman Jeffrey Briley presiding. The following were present: 

Jeffrey Briley, Chairman 
Portia Willis, Vice Chair 

Alfred Phillips, Member (absent) 
Edward Reynolds, Member 

Joseph Pierce, Member 
Brian Miller, ETJ Alternate Member (absent) 

Town Attorney Keen Lassiter 
Planning Director Bryan Jones 

Tony Klontz, Fire Retention, Recruitment and Member Officer 
Town Clerk Donald Harvey 

CALL TO ORDER: 

Chairman Briley called the meeting to order. 

WELCOME: 

Chairman Briley welcomed all Board members to the meeting. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

Motion made by Member Pierce and seconded by Member Reynolds to approve the agenda as 
presented. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS: 

Election of Officers. 



 

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

3 
 

Member Willis nominated Jeffrey Briley as Chairman. 
 
Motion made by Member Reynolds and seconded by Member Pierce to approve Jeffrey Briley as 
Chairman. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
Chairman Briley nominated Joseph Pierce as Vice Chair. 
 
Motion made by Member Reynolds and seconded by Member Pierce to approve Joseph Pierce as 
Vice Chairman. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Minutes of the March 19, 2019 meeting presented for approval. 
 
Motion made by Member Reynolds and seconded by Vice Chair Pierce to approve the March 19, 
2019 minutes as presented. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Chairman Briley requested that anyone wishing to speak for either public hearing on the Conditional Use 
Permits to please come forward. Town Attorney Lassiter swore in Amy Graham and Mike Doran. 
 
638 Winterfield Drive – Conditional Use Permit. (Customary Home Occupation – Dog Grooming). 
 
Planning Director Jones gave the following presentation: 
 

 
 



 

4 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

5 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

6 
 

 
 
Chairman Briley opened the public hearing and requested anyone wishing to speak in favor. Amy 
Graham, property owner, spoke in favor of the request and addressed all the factors of the Conditional 
Use Permit.  
 
Chairman Briley requested anyone wishing to speak in opposition. None requested to speak. 
 
Planning Director Jones noted that one anonymous comment in opposition was received and one 
comment supporting was received. Both were the type factors not admissible. 
 
Chairman Briley closed the public hearing. 
 
Chairman Briley went through the following criteria: 
 
Conditional Use Permit Request 
 
In addition to the Special Requirements, the Board of Adjustment shall make the following affirmative 
findings for approval: 
 
Conditional Use Permits. 
 
To hear and decide, in particular cases, and subject to appropriate conditions and safeguards, permits 
for conditional uses as authorized by Article VI. In granting a conditional use permit, the Board shall 
make the following affirmative findings: 
 
a) The Use requested is among those listed as an eligible Conditional Use in the District in which the 

subject property is located; 
 
b) That the Conditional Use will not materially endanger the public health or safety if located where 

proposed and developed according to the plan as proposed; 
 
c) That the Conditional Use meets all required conditions and specifications;  
 
d) That the Conditional Use will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting property, or 

that the use is a public necessity; and 
 



 

7 
 

e) That the location and character of the Conditional Use if developed according to the plan as 
proposed will be in harmony with the area in which it is to be located and in general conformity with 
the plan of development of the Town and its environs. 

 
Motion made by Member Reynolds and seconded by Vice Chair Pierce to approve Conditional 
Use Criteria a). Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
Motion made by Member Reynolds and seconded by Vice Chair Pierce to approve Conditional 
Use Criteria b). Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
Motion made by Member Reynolds and seconded by Vice Chair Pierce to approve Conditional 
Use Criteria c). Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
Motion made by Member Reynolds and seconded by Vice Chair Pierce to approve Conditional 
Use Criteria d). Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
Motion made by Member Willis and seconded by Member Reynolds to approve Conditional Use 
Criteria e). Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
Upon finding all criteria in the affirmative, the Conditional Use Permit is approved 
 
5600 Reedy Branch Road – Conditional Use Permit (Wireless Telecommunication Tower). 
 
Planning Director Jones gave the following presentation: 
 

 
 



 

8 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

9 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

10 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

11 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

12 
 

 
 
Chairman Briley opened the public hearing and requested anyone wishing to speak in favor. Mike Doran, 
representing US Cellular spoke in favor of the request and addressed all the factors of the Conditional 
Use Permit. 
 
Chairman Briley requested anyone wishing to speak in opposition. None requested to speak. 
 
Chairman Briley closed the public hearing. 
 
Chairman Briley went through the following criteria: 
 
Conditional Use Permit Request 
 
In addition to the Special Requirements, the Board of Adjustment shall make the following affirmative 
findings for approval: 
 
Conditional Use Permits. 
 
To hear and decide, in particular cases, and subject to appropriate conditions and safeguards, permits 
for conditional uses as authorized by Article VI. In granting a conditional use permit, the Board shall 
make the following affirmative findings: 
 
a) The Use requested is among those listed as an eligible Conditional Use in the District in which the 

subject property is located; 
 
b) That the Conditional Use will not materially endanger the public health or safety if located where 

proposed and developed according to the plan as proposed; 
 
c) That the Conditional Use meets all required conditions and specifications;  
 
d) That the Conditional Use will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting property, or 

that the use is a public necessity; and 
 
e) That the location and character of the Conditional Use if developed according to the plan as 

proposed will be in harmony with the area in which it is to be located and in general conformity with 
the plan of development of the Town and its environs. 



 

13 
 

 
Motion made by Vice Chair Pierce and seconded by Member Reynolds to approve Conditional 
Use Criteria a). Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
Motion made by Member Reynolds and seconded by Vice Chair Pierce to approve Conditional 
Use Criteria b). Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
Motion made by Member Reynolds and seconded by Vice Chair Pierce to approve Conditional 
Use Criteria c). Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
Motion made by Member Willis and seconded by Member Reynolds to approve Conditional Use 
Criteria d). Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
Motion made by Member Willis and seconded by Member Reynolds to approve Conditional Use 
Criteria e). Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
Upon finding all criteria in the affirmative, the Conditional Use Permit is approved 
 
REPORTS FROM STAFF – INFORMATIONAL ITEMS: 
 
Planning Director Jones reviewed the monthly report: 



 

14 
 

 
 
COMMENTS FROM PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD MEMBERS: 
 
ADJOURN: 
 
Having no further business to come before the Board of Adjustment meeting, Chairman Briley requested 
a motion to adjourn. 
 
Motion made by Member Reynolds and seconded by Vice Chair Pierce to adjourn the meeting. 
Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. Meeting adjourned at 8:01 pm. 



 

15 
 

 
Adopted this the 22nd day of September 2020. 

 
 
 
 
   
 Jeffrey Briley, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 



 

Town of Winterville 
Board of Adjustment 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: October 20, 2020 
Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

 

Item Section:  New Business 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: 403 Castleford Drive - Variance 

Action Requested: Conditional Use Permit  

Attachments: Variance Application, Notification to Adjacent Property Owners 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 10/14/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC         FD        TM         Final        

Supporting Documentation 
Applicant:   Will Kuhn Homes 

 

Location: 403 Castleford Drive (Brookfield Subdivision) 

 

Parcel Number: 84244                       Site Data: 0.34 Acres          Current Zoning District: R-10      

 

Application:  Variance of side setbacks from 10’ to 8’.   

Reason for Variance:  Per the application, the layout of the lot with current setbacks and Riparian Buffer doesn’t 
leave an option to build a single family residence. 

                                                                                                  

 Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the Variance application on October 5, 2020. 
 Notification was posted on the site on October 5, 2020. 
 Notification of the hearing was published in the Daily Reflector on October 7, 2020 and October 14, 2020. 

Budgetary Impact:  N/A 

Recommendation:  N/A 

 







2571 Railroad Street                Phone (252)215-2358 
PO Box 1459           Fax (252)756-3109 
Winterville, NC 28590            www.wintervillenc.com 

 
Board of Adjustment Hearing 

Conditional Use Permit 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Board of Adjustment will meet on Tuesday, October 
20, 2020 at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 2571 Railroad Street, in order to have a 
Board of Adjustment hearing on the Variance Application described below: 
 
An application has been submitted for 403 Castleford Drive (Brookfield, Lot 30 - Parcel Number 
84244) requesting a Variance of the side setback requirements from 10’ to 8’.  The subject property is 
zoned R-10.  Per the application, the layout of the lot with the current setbacks and the presence of 
the Riparian Buffer does not leave an option to build a single-family residential structure.  
 
Copies of the Zoning Ordinance and Map are on file at the Planning Department Office in the Town 
Tall and are available for public inspection by contacting bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com or the 
Winterville Planning Department at (252) 215-2358 or at wintervillenc.com. 
 
**The Town of Winterville will be keeping measures in place in an ongoing effort to mitigate the 
spread of COVID-19.  These measures include barring physical attendance at the meeting, 
employing social distancing, and implementing remote participation.  The public is encouraged to 
watch the meeting live on YouTube (www.wintervillenc.com/videos).  Those that wish to address the 
Town Council during the Public Hearing should contact the Town Clerk at (252) 215-2344 to register 
by one business day before the meeting at 5:00 p.m.  Prior to or within 24-hours following a public 
hearing, the public may submit written comments to the Town Clerk’s office, 2571 Railroad Street, 
Winterville, NC 28590, or via email to don.harvey@wintervillenc.com. Please include your name and 
address. 
 

 

http://www.wintervillenc.com/videos
mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


  

Richard Lee 
Caretta Lee 
2820 Cresset Drive 
Winterville NC 28590       

 
 
Rachel Burke 
2826 Cresset Drive 
Winterville, NC 28590 
      

 
Charles Knight 
Desena McKenzie 
2834 Cresset Drive 
Winterville, NC 28590 
   

  

Jeanette O Fleming 
417 Castleford Drive 
Winterville, NC 28590 
      

William Bradford 
Darshan Bradford 
423 Castleford Drive 
Winterville, NC 28590 
      

Cecil Jackson 
Tracie Jackson 
422 Castleford Drive 
Winterville, NC 28590 
   

  

 
Anne Borisoff 
414 Castleford Drive 
Winterville, NC 28590 
 
      

Patricia Jackson 
408 Castleford Drive 
Winterville, NC 28590 
      

 
Ruben E Soto Terron 
Marisol Gonzalez Mena 
406 Castleford Drive 
Winterville, NC 28590 

 
  

  

 
Shakkur A Salaah 
Debbie A Salaah 
403 Castleford Drive 
Winterville, NC 28590 

 
     

MAILED ON  
10/5/2020 
____________      

Tony Gonzalez 
Andrea Stermer 
401 Castleford Drive 
Winterville, NC 28590 
   

  

 
 
 

      

 

         

                 

                 

                 

                 

                 

 



2571 RAILROAD ST 
PO BOX 1459 

WINTERVILLE, NC 
28590 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
       BRYAN JONES 

        DIRECTOR        

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Board of Adjustment

Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

October 1, 2020 

Monthly Report 

Please find below a summary of the projects, tasks and issues the Planning Department has been 
working on during the month of September 2020. 

ZONING COMPLIANCES Total = 20 YTD (2020) = 152 
New Single-Family Residential 3 45 
Accessory Structures 7 29 
New Business 0 8 
Residential Fence 3 33 
Additions/Pools/Other 7 37 

Other Activities/Projects 
NC Association of Floodplain 
Managers – Webinar 

9/9/2020 Discussed the modernization of datum 
changes to the National Geodetic Survey. 

Pitt County Complete Count 
Committee 

9/10/2020 Discussed the ongoing activities of the 
2020 Census. 

Town Council Meeting 9/14/2020 FDPO Amendments – Public Hearing 
(Approved); Eli’s Ridge, Ph 1 & 3 Annex 
(Set PH.); Davenport Property Rezoning 
(Set PH); F&A Construction Rezoning 
(Set PH) 

Pitt County Comprehensive 
Transportation Plan Steering 
Committee 

9/28/2020 Met to discuss development of the multi-
modal plan to identify transportation 
needs for the next 30 years. 

Neuse River Basin Flood Risk 
Reduction Feasibility Study 

9/29/2020 Participated in meeting with the US 
Army Corps of Engineers to address 
potential flood risk measures. 

National Flood Insurance Program 
Summer Workshop 

9/30/2020 Workshop detailed the duties of the 
Floodplain Administrator. 


	ADP5239.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Brewery Ordinance Amendment. 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM  12/16/2016
	 Final  12/16/2016
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPA856.tmp
	Zoning Ordinance Amendment�(Wine and Craft Beer Store, Microbrewery/Brewpub, & Regional Brewery)
	Wine & Craft Beer Store
	Wine & Craft Beer Store
	Wine & Craft Beer Store
	Microbrewery/ Brewpub
	Microbrewery/ Brewpub
	Microbrewery 
	Special Requirement 23:
	Trollingwood In Greenville, NC  (Microbrewery)
	Hams- Greenville, NC (brew Pub)
	Koi Pond- Rocky Mount, NC (Microbrewery)
	Regional Brewery
	Regional Brewery
	The Duck-Rabbit Craft Brewery- Farmville, NC
	Mother Earth- Kinston, NC
	Contact Stephen Penn for Questions or Details 

	ADPF9C8.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Permitted & Conditional Use Workshop Changes to Agricultural-Residential (A-R) District
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP7513.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Thad’s Reedy Branch Subdivision. 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP534D.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: 135 Liberty St. Lean-To.  
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP25E9.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: 447 Cooper Street Accessory Building. 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP7D8E.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: 88 Cooper Street & 204 Cross Street- Winterville Machine Works 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPB25C.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP392A.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP6D56.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP172E.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPC99D.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP6E29.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Happy Trail Farms, LLC Property Rezoning 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP3CFE.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Ange Plaza Lot 26 & Revision of Lot 23.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP3E28.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Harris Division Tract A Annexation: Villa Grande Annexation of newly proposed section. Annexation Contingent on approval of rezoning and preliminary plat. 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP7C19.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Brookfield, Section 3, Revision of Lots 16-26.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPFA4F.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Summer Winds, Section 2, Phase 2
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP529D.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Holly Grove
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP3733.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Eli’s Ridge
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP454A.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Happy Trail Farms, LLC Property Rezoning 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPDB9C.tmp
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	ADP93A4.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Happy Trail Farms, LLC Property Rezoning 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPEE2B.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Eli’s Ridge
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	Prelim Plat - Copper Creek, Sect 2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Prelim Plat

	2-Prelim Plat.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Prelim Plat



	ADP5CA8.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Villa Grande, Phase 2
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP4160.tmp
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	ADPBAA9.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Brookfield, Section 4
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP38F3.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Davis Property (parcel 10962) - Rezoning 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPF1FB.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Parcel 08836 (5600 Reedy Branch Road) – Conditional Use Permit (Wireless Telecommunication Tower)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP72BD.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: 638 Winterfield Drive – Conditional Use Permit (Home Occupation, Customary – Dog Grooming)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	556961 Town of Winterville CUP SUBMISSION.pdf
	Zoning Statement  Findings Wintervile SO.pdf
	STATEMENT IN SUPPORT OF APPLICATION
	PROJECT DESCRIPTION & FINDINGS
	.
	The proposed facility would consist of a 199’ Monopole with in a 100’ x 100’ fenced in area. There will also be a poured cement pad 14’ x 16’ to support our outdoor equipment
	The Proposed Monopole will be designed to support 3 additional wireless user thereby decreasing the need for future towers in the area.
	The design and construction of the proposed facility does not create any substantial adverse effect, including value and injury (public safety) to the surrounding properties.  The proposed facility will comply with all applicable structural engineeri...
	The Proposed Facility is designed to fill a coverage gap in the Applicant’s network.  These networks operate on a “grid” system, whereby overlapping “cells” (geographic wireless coverage areas) mesh to form a continuous wireless network.  In order to ...
	Given the public’s increasing dependency on wireless technology, wireless networks and the cell sites that make up these networks are now more than ever critical to the safety and well being of the overall population.  Wireless technology provides vit...
	The Applicant firmly believes the zoning relief approvals needed for the Proposed Facility will be in the best interest of the Applicant and the community, thereby deemed necessary for the public convenience. The Applicant stands to gain a more improv...
	The Applicant hereby incorporates by reference all of the facts and materials contained in this Statement and its attachments into this application.  Without limiting the generality or efficacy of the preceding the Applicant hereby specifically state ...
	Other Points:
	1.) The use is reasonably necessary for the public convenience at that location:
	TRUE, the public relies on wireless communications not only for “convenience” but they also depend on it for public safety.  This location is necessary due to the location of the surrounding sites (towers) that exist.
	2.) The use is so designed, located, and proposed to be operated that it will not be injurious to the district in which it shall be located or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare:
	TRUE – The granting of the Conditional use Permit shall not cause injury to the district or surrounding areas.  The wireless communications facility will be designed to meet all Federal, State and Local codes that regulate such facilities.  If granted...
	3.)  The use conforms to the applicable regulations and standards of, and preserves the essential character of, the district in which it is located:
	TRUE – The future character of the immediate area should remain farm land for the considerable future. And with the tower set back deep on this parcel and being landscaped it will become part of the character of the area over time and fall out of view...


	ADP91E5.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: 403 Castleford Drive - Variance
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation





